Fiats, Affirmations, Mantras and Prayers



for Members of the Order of the Diamond Heart

a Holy Order of The Summit Lighthouse®

Fiats, Affirmations, Mantras and Prayers for Members of the Order of the Diamond Heart, a Holy Order of The Summit Lighthouse ® Published by The Summit Lighthouse ® for Church Universal and Triumphant Copyright © 2004 Church Universal and Triumphant, Inc. All rights reserved.

No part of this booklet may be reproduced, translated, or electronically stored, posted or transmitted, or used in any format or medium whatsoever without prior written permission. For information, write or call Church Universal and Triumphant, PO Box 5000, Corwin Springs, MT 59030-5000.

Phone: 1-800-245-5445 or 406-848-9500

The Summit Lighthouse, Church Universal and Triumphant, Summit University, Keepers of the Flame, and *Pearls of Wisdom* are trademarks registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and in other countries. All rights to their use are reserved.

Note to the Reader: This booklet is a compilation of material taken from *Prayers*, *Meditations*, *Dynamic Decrees for the Coming Revolution in Higher Consciousness; Church Universal and Triumphant Book of Hymns and Songs; Pearls of Wisdom* and other publications of Church Universal and Triumphant, The Summit Lighthouse, Summit University Press and The Summit Lighthouse LibraryTM.

The image on the cover was inspired by a visualization given by El Morya. "This blue flame blazes within a diamond, and the diamond is within a pink heart. The will of God expresses thus within a heart filled with the immaculate concept of divine love." El Morya, quoted in Mark L. Prophet and Elizabeth Clare Prophet, *Morya I*, p. 121.

ii

Contents

Part 1 – Prayers and Affirmations

Prayer of the Devotee of the Diamond Heart				
Mother Mary's Immaculate Prayer				
Prayer by Lanello				
Prayer to the Master of Life				
Affirmations and Short Prayers				
To the Holy Christ Self and to Jesus & His Sacred Hear				
To El Morya and the Will of God				
Confession, Forgiveness and Overcoming the Lesser Sel				
To the I Am Presence and the LORD God				
Affirmations Taken from "The Reincarnation of the				
Spirit of America" by Saint Germain	21			
•				
Part 2 – Fiats				
Fiats of the Christ	2			
Fiats for the Will of God				
Fiats to God	20			
My Christmas Fiat by Jesus Christ	29			
Part 3 – Mantras and Kuan Yin Vows				
Mantras to Maitreya	33			
Mantra to Padma Sambhava	33			
Mantra to Avalokitesvara/ Kuan Yin	33			
Mantras to the Five Dhyani Buddhas and Vajrasattva	34			
Ten Vows of Kuan Yin				
Suggested Decrees and Affirmations	37			

Part 1 Prayers and Affirmations

iii

Prayer of the Devotee of the Diamond Heart

Behold, I AM everywhere in the consciousness of God! Therefore, in giving my life I cannot lose it, for he has found me and taken me all to his heart.

I AM one with Jesus, his disciple of the Sacred Heart. And I AM, I AM, I AM giving my portion to form the Diamond Heart of Mary and Morya as the worldwide sign to every foe, every foreigner and enemy of Christ:

Thus far and no farther! The Diamond Heart of the sons and daughters of light shall prevail in the name of our Lord and Saviour Jesus Christ! It is done and we accept it done this hour in full power. For God in us is the doer and it is done.

Beloved Jesus, my brother, my Master, I will follow in the footsteps of the saints of the Diamond Heart. I will give the just portion of my life that not one, neither the messenger, neither a keeper of the flame, need be plucked of thee from God's garden on earth. I seal this, Jesus, with a gift of my heart, thy heart one.

Behold, my Lord! I AM with thee everywhere in the consciousness of God! And by that reality, my Lord, I know there is no death, there is no grave, there is no hell, for the life triumphant has swallowed up the death of defeat!

It is done. We are one, nevermore to go out into the shackles and limitations of time and space.

Jesus, thou art my All. I AM thy All. And I do enter thy heart as thy bride, thy servant and disciple, thy friend.

O Lord, take me where thou wouldst have me into the highest heaven and into the depths of Hades. O Lord, let me serve thee wherever thou art and one of these thy little ones is gone out of the way.

In the name of the way, the truth and the life, Jesus, I AM thine own forever through my daily, step-by-step service in the Order of the Diamond Heart.

Jesus Christ, "The Hour of Thy Victory Draweth Nigh," December 25, 1987, 1987 *Pearls of Wisdom*, vol. 30, pp. 645-46.

Mother Mary's Immaculate Prayer For Your Immaculate Becoming of the Word

I will care for thee, my LORD and my Saviour!

I will affirm thy victory.

I will praise thee in the hour of seeming death

That truly is life eternal here and now!

I will bind up the brokenhearted in thy name!

I will find thee, my LORD, in the very heart

Of thy children helpless, thy disciples not yet whole.

I will give compassion as roses on the vine of my becoming

The fullness of the Rose of Sharon.

I will.

I will give the precious essence of thy life given unto me.

With each in breath of the sacred fire, I will breathe out—

Purusha!

I will convey that element of Godhood

That God has given to me this day!

And after a million billion breaths in the life of Brahma,

So I will know that Christ himself is formed in me.

And I am all aglow!

And the floral offering of angels of the resurrection

Will adorn my form that is God's.

For, lo! Christ has come to live within

This temple where I AM.

Lo! I AM THAT I AM

In the fullness of the joy of the Godhead dwelling in me bodily.

Mother Mary, "The Offering of the Rose of Sharon: The Hour of the Mother's Crucifixion with Maitreya, Attended by the Avatars Lord Jesus and Lord Gautama," April 17, 1981, 1981 *Pearls of Wisdom*, vol. 24, p. 209.

Prayer by Lanello Taken from "The Baptism of the Sacred Fire"

O Lord, my God, if I be not worthy for the fullness of thy heart to manifest in me bodily in this hour, I pray, therefore, send thy Son, thine own only begotten who is Christ the Lord of my being, even my Saviour and my God.

And let this Christed One place that mantle upon me and approximate that heart as close, as close, my God, as the Great Law will allow. And let there be compensation whereby I truly might be in this moment the martyr on behalf of my Community, whereby there is put into the fire that unreality, and reality does appear. And [that] for this hour I might hold the balance for Mother and for Lanello and for all of the body of God upon earth who have not yet come into the folds of their garments.

Therefore, O Lord, thou who hast overcome the world, even the Son, Jesus Christ, come now with my own Beloved, come into my temple and be thou the overcomers of this condition, of this circumstance spawned by the very astral hordes in death and in hell, spawned by the Nephilim!

Even so, LORD God, come quickly and consume the works of the destroyer who is not the Holy Spirit but the impostor, even the Nephilim in their spacecraft, even the fallen ones in the earth, even those who are the purveyors of lies and gossip concerning myself, O God!

Lo, I stand in the wake of the martyr, Thomas à Becket, Thomas More, and all those who have stood in Rome, there to be devoured by the lions rather than forsake the living truth!

Here I stand! Let my martyrdom be, O God, that I live life to its fullest, life so full that life consumes all death where I AM-life so full that it be the spontaneous combustion of the fiery baptism, the sacred fire that burns where I AM, consuming all unlike thee, the sacred fire that is an offense unto the fallen ones! Let them therefore persecute that which is called "me," my God.

Therefore, forsake me not that I may not forsake thee, my God. Therefore, come to me, O Lord, and lift in this hour this burden upon our community that we might not be perpetually upon the defensive but might now go forth as the offensive for God in the earth, even pronouncing the judgment of Mount Seir,

the entire accumulation of the mountain of unreality of the Nephilim gods!

Even so, Lord Jesus Christ, even so, Lord Morya El, even so, Lord Saint Germain, come quickly into my temple and be thou the living God! Even so I will proclaim thy name I AM THAT I AM Sanat Kumara unto the Victory, unto the Victory, and *unto the Victory*, my God.

Lanello, "The Baptism of Sacred Fire," March 15, 1981, 1981 *Pearls of Wisdom*, vol. 24, pp. 606-7.

Prayer to the Master of Life

In the name of the light of God that never fails,

I call unto the Father through the Son Jesus Christ.

Intensify thy light in our hearts that we might experience

The fullness of this Passion week with thee, O Lord.

In the name of Mother Mary, deliver to us now thy Holy Spirit,

The full victory of thy resurrection

Through this trial, through this betrayal.

Beloved Jesus, let us rise with thee in the spirit of the resurrection

To the fullness of the ascension in the light.

We are grateful, O Master—

Master of life and of universes unborn,

Thou universal Christ incarnate—

For thy example forever and forever.

Walk with us, then, in the garden of life,

Parting veils from glory unto glory

Until indeed we sup with thee anew in our Father's kingdom.

We are grateful for thyself as the Lamb on Mount Sion.

We are grateful for thy person

As Saviour, Comforter, Healer, Burden-Bearer,

And at last the Judge who sitteth at the right hand of God,

Dividing the way of the Tree of Life with our Father.

O Lord, come into our temple.

Let us sup with thee in this hour and know thy walk through this earth

Until all of thy children are one in thy heart

And thy sons and thy daughters glorified with thee.

Go before each one gathered here, O God.

For these keepers of the flame will go forth to their cities and towns,

To their domains to meet the challenges which thou didst face.

Strengthen them, encourage them, give them thy life.

As thou hast succored me and my own, O Lord, give to them

The strength also for the full victory of the cosmic cross of white fire.

O angels of the resurrection, angels of the cosmic cross of white fire,

Now intensify in our hearts the fullness of his cup

As we drink all of it, and his Body.

For all mine are thine, all thine are mine.

Thus the Father and the Son include us in their wholeness.

And therefore, we celebrate this Communion, above all else,

To know thee as thou art, to know that because thou art, I AM:

To know the true Oneness.

More than this, we cannot ask, O God.

And therefore, we commend our spirits unto thy keeping

For the victory of love here and now and universes without end.

In the name of the Father, the Son, the Holy Spirit,

and the Mother, Amen.

Affirmations and Short Prayers

To the Holy Christ Self and to Jesus and His Sacred Heart

- O Jesus, my Lord, thou the All of me: I the nothing. Take my nothingness, O my Lord, and let me be the allness of thyself.
 Be the Christ in me, my Lord, and I shall be worthy--worthy to be thy bride, as thou art the Lamb and thou art worthy before the throne of God.
- 2. O my Holy Christ Self--thou the All and I the nothing-be thou myself as Holy Christ Flame burning on the altar of my heart for my Jesus, my Bridegroom, my Lord!
- 3. In the name of my mighty I AM Presence and Holy Christ Self, I call for the Sacred Heart of Jesus to be superimposed over my heart chakra. I ask that it strengthen and protect my heart as I determine to become the Christ.
- 4. Jesus, I bid you enter my whole temple now!
 By my free will, by my God-dominion, I welcome you!
 And I let go of everything, my Lord.
- 5. O Jesus, Jesus, Jesus, come into my heart! Rekindle my love. Let it overflow the chalice of my heart That I might extend the cup of mercy To every part of life, Every part of life, Every part of life!
- 6. O Jesus, take me in your heart to the heart of God that I might pray with you for earth and the systems of worlds.
- 7. Beloved mighty I AM Presence, beloved Jesus, seal me in your Sacred Heart and let your heart be my heart. Let me find that perfect balance whereby I can walk the earth as your twin. No joy would be greater than to walk the earth in the fullness of my Christhood, your Christhood. Therefore, open my eyes, O Lord, that I might truly see thee face-to-face.

- 8. I want to be on the list!
 I want the tutoring of the Maha Chohan.
 I want my tutor to be my Holy Christ Self incarnate within me.
 - I do not shirk from this.

I do not shirk from the disciplines I must undergo to make this happen.

For I will have my wholeness in this life!

For God has ordained it,

And I have been one with God from the Beginning.

Even though I have strayed from the center,

I have never crossed the line of the periphery of the cosmos and stepped into outer darkness.

Yet I know had I done this, even so my Lord would

have sent his angels to catch me and bring me back!

- 9. Dear Jesus, I desire to physically embody the fullness of my Holy Christ Self and to walk the earth as your twin. Please show me what I am holding onto that I think I need to keep me 'humanly balanced,' but in reality is an avoidance technique and is blocking my communion with your heart. Show me what it is that I can surrender that will open the door to you and allow you to bring me into congruence with my Real Self, and into oneness with your Sacred Heart.
- 10. I, too, with Christ am the Word incarnate,
 For there is no longer separation
 between me and my Lord.
 For I AM one in his words.
 I have drunk his blood.
 I have assimilated his flesh.
 And I am that I AM, which he is, where I am.

Lo, it is he!

Lo, he cometh!

Lo, he cometh where I AM in the Ashram or in the eye of the hurricane.

Lo, he cometh.

Ten thousand of his saints surround me.

And I AM one-

I AM one in him and he in me by the Word incarnate.

11. Lo, the Word cometh!

Lo, the Word is where I AM!

O God, make me worthy.

I AM worthy.

Make me worthy.

I AM worthy.

12. There is no more night here!

For I AM the manifestation of that Holy City where I AM!

And I do not procrastinate my union with my God

Or with that City Foursquare

Or with my Christ or with my Divine Mother.

I enter the spirit of the resurrection now!

And if in my tardiness and in my dalliance

My entering in may cause me some pain,

Then I welcome it!

For I understand that if I would be ready,

Then the spirit that is anti the living Christ in me

Must be broken!

13. Lo, I AM ready.

Lo, I have come.

Lo. I AM in the flame of the One.

Lo, I will tarry with the Lord Jesus Christ.

And I will proclaim his message

Of salvation, of the new birth,

And of the incarnation of the Word

Unto his children.

14. O Lord, I accept that I AM the vessel of your being.

I would be, and I AM, the vessel of Christ.

Show me the way.

Do not allow me to stray.

Take me to thy heart, O God

To El Morya and the Will of God

15. Morya would send me. I will fit myself for whatever I must go through to reach that place of individual Christhood, my soul bonded to the Sacred Heart of Jesus and to the heart of my Holy Christ Self. That is the place I want to be—in the earth—so long as I have life and breath and health and will to do so.

I desire to be that flaming chela. I desire to draw from the depths of my being, from the depths of the earth, from the depths of the ascended masters as much fire as I can hold, and hold in harmony.

I, then, will go after those things that are beneath the surface. I will go after those things in therapy, in prayer, in monumental works and in dynamic decrees.

- 16. O thou will of the diamond heart of God's eternal purpose, I am enduring all hardness required to make me a good soldier of the cosmic purpose. I am determined to endure all hardness the great cosmic law will require me. I am determined to watch with the great cosmic masters every hour until I have manifested their perfection. I am their perfection now, and I ever shall be the perfection of God without limit.
- 17. Where I stand, there is Morya!

And in his name I say:

Thus far and no farther!

You shall not pass!

You shall not tread on holy ground!

You shall not enter this hallowed place!

You shall not come between me and my God!

My God is happiness this day.

My God is holiness.

My God is the divine wholeness of the Living One.

I and my Father Morya are one!

- 18. Lo, I AM come to do thy will, O God!
 - Lo, I AM come to manifest thy victory of the ascension in this life!
 - Lo, I AM come to do thy will, O God!
 - Lo, I AM come to make my ascension in this life and to demonstrate the victory of the path of the ascension to all evolutions upon earth!
- 19. The light of God's will
 Flows ever through me
 The flow of real purpose
 I now clearly see
 O pearly white radiance
 Command all life free!

Confession, Forgiveness and Overcoming the Lesser Self

- 20. Father, forgive me. I call upon thy law of forgiveness for all misuses of the abundant life. Let thy mercy which endureth forever come now into my temple. And out of the heart of mercy, O God, for thy grace unto thy children do thou now enter my temple and be the multiplier of the bread of life. Let me be merely the instrument and thou, O God, the welcome guest and indeed the occupier of my temple. I ask, O God, to be the instrument of thy life. Come now and perform thy perfect work through me.
- 21. I have gone out of the way. I have sinned. I come now as penitent. I come to confess all of the spots and blemishes of my being, and I desire to take the humble steps of the most humble pathway back to God. And because I have forfeited the intercession of the one whom God sent for the ransom of my soul, because I have forfeited the bonding of my soul to my own Christ Self, I will submit wholly and lovingly to the path of the return and I will agree to meet whatever are the requirements for my return.
- 22. This type of expression I no longer allow. I go to the core of its cause. I go to the core of the condition. I go to the heart of Astrea and to the heart of God. I remain tough-minded, determined, at peace and in the supreme joy of the victory I claim. And I am consistent. And I kneel before the Lord

- Jesus Christ and profoundly I call for his intercession to deliver me of this momentum, which this day and date I declare is broken by the sword of Archangel Michael, by the right hand and the rod of Hercules!
- 23. In the name of my mighty I AM Presence and the Great Divine Director; in the name Jesus Christ, I demand and command the arresting of the spirals of negative karma throughout my entire consciousness, being and world--that every single cycle of every single cell and atom within my form that is not outpicturing the perfect cycles of the Christ consciousness be now dissolved, be now arrested and turned back by the authority of my God Presence! And in the name Jesus Christ, I demand and command that the cycle of immortal life and my divine plan be fulfilled and that my ascension prevail!
- 24. Let all unreality be cast into the sacred fire of my mighty I AM Presence! I cast myself upon the rock that the 'I' that is the lesser self might be broken! Father, into thine arms I commend my spirit.
- 25. I take the sword of Christ my Lord, my knight, my defender, and I take that sword and I drive it down the very middle of this personality divided, this Dr. Jekyll and Mr. Hyde! I take that sword and I cleave it asunder! And I will take neither the Jekyll nor the Hyde but I will take the Christ, who shall step forth, even as the mighty phoenix bird shall rise in this age from the ashes of a former self that is former and must be allowed to remain former.
- 26. These are the things I can change!
 And I will change them joyously by the fire of
 Brahman who I AM.

And I AM THAT I AM. THAT I AM.

That I AM which I AM is Brahman.

Therefore I shall change for the better as I see that I can change. And I will look to the glory of the LORD—yes, the glory of the LORD, my mighty I AM Presence. I will look to the glory of my own Christ Self and threefold flame, and I will see that glory working through me—in

me and yet not of me, but of that which is only God.

Oh yes, I will see that glory as a whirlwind of fire and wind.

I will see it going before me fashioning my future,
fashioning my all, re-creating me so that God, *God* may
reveal himself to men because Christ is born in me this day!

To the I AM Presence and the LORD God

- 27. O LORD my God, I am not able but thou art able in me.
 Because thou hast called, I will answer,
 Trusting that thou knowest surely what is the capacity
 Of my soul and my spirit to take my turn, to play my part
 And thus to increase the opportunity for the little ones of God
 To be drawn up by the very draft of the Holy Spirit
 That will surround me as I come into consonance
 With this point of initiation of the rose of the heart.
- 28. These are thy hands, O God. Thou hast made them. Let them be instruments in thy service. Let them be careworn if necessary, but let them be functional on behalf of the light.
- 29. I AM ready! In all of the ages that have passed when failures have plagued me, generated by my own lack of understanding, I know that thou wert there and that thou have guided me unto the present hour. Therefore, I stand, waiting my own cosmic initiation. I desire a place in thy great sheepfold. I would be a stone in the temple pure and holy and immortal. I offer myself and all that I AM to thee! Take me and use me, assimilate me and direct me.
- 30. Father, mighty I AM Presence, thou magnificent heart of light, thou who brought me into perfect manifestation, take the reins here. Guide, govern, direct and control my way through the streets of life. God, give me thy perfection. God, give me thy protection. Mighty I AM Presence, see that I make no mistakes here. See that I walk in absolute peace, purity, wisdom and light into thy own arms. Receive me, Father, thou mighty I AM Presence, in thy own good time into the arms of ascension's light until thy beauty reigns supreme everywhere I AM.

- 31. O my Father, my Father, I have no continuing city in this land but I seek one to come, determining here to externalize before my peers—for I behold every man as the magnificent picture of thyself—all that is lovely, in the humbleness and humility of my being, until I can summon from life in all of its divergent manifestations thy mighty power of Christ-victory that shall make me worthy to be a partaker of the radiance of the Holy Grail.
- 32. This day thou hast begotten me, O God.
 I AM thy child.
 I AM born at the point of origin of all things.
 Lo, O God, I AM Alpha and Omega!
 I fill the void in earth as thou hast filled the void in heaven.
 For I AM thy Son, O God, in manifestation here.
 I will to live thy life, O God.
 Show me the way!
- 33. Here I AM, O God!

Here I stand.

I AM faithful to that cause to which the LORD has anointed my soul and, yea, my spirit.

Here I stand, O God!

I AM, I will and I shall be faithful to the course of duty, to the coil of light, to the dharma of my mission, and to the cosmic cross of white fire of that planetary/personal karma to which I AM also committed.

34. I will not leave thee, O my God!

I will not leave thee, O my God!

I will not leave thee, O my God!

I will tend that fire.

I will adore that flame

And by and by some will aspire to be with me— To be Maitreya

35. Day by day, I AM becoming more of God.

Day by day, I AM discarding the outworn garments of my former self.

Here, take them away! I do not want them.

They no longer represent me.

I wore these when I was not the fullness of who I AM.

Therefore I put upon me new garments—new garments without the stain of transgression, garments that day by day are becoming seamless garments as one by one the scars are healed and disappear, as one by one the lines of old age are no more and my tender feet and my tender heart are renewed in the springtime of childhood and perfect love.

- 36. Lo, God in me is a saint of God! God in me makes me an issue of God himself. I am his lifestream. I am his divine sending. Lo, I am of him. I have gone forth from him but now I affirm: I AM the undiluted Self. I AM the soul that has not lost her savor. I AM the soul infired by God. I receive it. I know it. I accept my fiery destiny in this moment.
- 37. O star of eternal perfection,

Shine in me!

O star of eternal perfection,

Shine through me!

O star of radiant wonder,

Flash forth thy rays into the world!

Burn through dark sheaths of hate,

Fear, greed and unbelief-

Tear the veil from the face of injustice—

Open the gates, and let flow

The love of the Infinite here below!

Wherever I AM, wherever I go,

Eternal Presence, let light flow!

38. All that I AM is God.

God is all that I AM and there is naught else.

I AM the aloneness of the All.

I AM the all-oneness of the All.

I AM THAT I AM, and God in me is the victory—

Is the victory of this star, this world, this child,

This single flower that will mean the turning of this life.

39. Our Father who art in heaven,

Hallowed be thy name, I AM.

I AM thy kingdom come

I AM thy will being done

I AM on earth even as I AM in heaven

I AM giving this day daily bread to all

I AM forgiving all life this day even as

I AM also all life forgiving me

I AM leading all men away from temptation

I AM delivering all men from every evil condition

I AM the kingdom

I AM the power and

I AM the glory of God in eternal, immortal manifestation—

All this I AM.

40. I AM the full expression of the radiance of God!

I AM the full expression of the power and glory of God!

I AM the full expression of the kingdom of God!

For now I AM expanding the consciousness of light here, and I AM increasing the strength of the great stream of light that comes from the power of my office!

41. I can do anything in God,

For with God in me all things are possible!

I can become who I really am.

I can become all that God has intended me to be.

I can become one with my twin flame.

I can fulfill my reason for being.

I do not have to be on the treadmill of a system

That has failed to enable the people to be free

To pursue the oneness of God.

I can be who I AM!

42. God is where I AM.

I AM that God in manifestation!

This is my premise.

This is the foundation of every move I make and every prayer I breathe.

I AM my God in action and there is no division!

I AM in agreement.

I am agreeing as I affirm the flow of fire in my midst.

And I know that the joy of that flow of fire desires for me all that I AM-all that I am to be and all that I desire or need in the process of becoming who I AM.

And I AM Brahman.

I AM in the fire of the Atman, the point of perfect joy.

43. O LORD, I AM THAT I AM

The fullness of thy resurrection and thy life within me this day!

And I AM alive forevermore in thee

And in the Central Sun and in the earth!

Behold, I AM with Lanello:

Everywhere in the consciousness of God!

44. Here I AM, Lord! Here I AM, Lord!

You have called me forth long, long ago and I have made my rounds in the cosmos of these Matter spheres and I return now, for I have a worthy gift to offer you.

And that gift and that offering is of myself, for at last I AM at peace in thy love, in thy direction, in thy clear seeing and in thy wondrous creation of my being in thee.

I AM thine own because I AM thyself. I have realized thyself as myself and therefore I AM coming Home.

I AM coming Home.

- 1. Jesus Christ, October 14, 1991, 1991 PoW^* , vol. 34, p. 752.
- 2. Ibid., p.753.
- 3. Elizabeth Clare Prophet & Staff of Summit University, *Walking with the Master*, p. 162.
- 4. Prophet & Staff of SU, Walking with the Master, p. 93.
- 5. El Morya, April 8, 1990, 1990 *PoW*, vol. 33, p. 205.
- 6. Jesus Christ, November 27, 1980, 1980 *PoW*, vol. 23, p. 345.
- 7. Prophet & Staff of SU, Walking with the Master, p. 389.
- 8. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1994, 1994 *PoW*, vol. 37, pp. 585-86.
- 9. Prophet & Staff of SU, Walking with the Master, p. 389.
- 10. El Morya, July 8, 1990, 1990 *PoW*, vol. 34, p. 433.
- 11. Mother Mary, December 14, 1980, 1981 *PoW*, vol. 24, p. 14.
- 12. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1990, 1990 *PoW*, vol. 33, p. 622.
- 13. Lanello, October 7, 1978, 1981 *PoW*, vol. 24, p. 426.
- 14. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1994, 1994 *PoW*, vol. 37, p. 588.
- 15. El Morya, July 7, 1996, 2003 *PoW*, vol. 46, p. 143.
- 16. Mark. L. Prophet & Elizabeth Clare Prophet, *Morya*, p. 67.17. El Morya, April 8, 1990, 1990, PoW
- 17. El Morya, April 8, 1990, 1990 *PoW*, vol. 33, p. 204.
- 18. Saint Germain, May 3, 1981, 1981 *PoW*, vol. 24, p. 285.
- 19. Church Universal and Triumphant Book of Hymns and Songs, no. 205.
- 20. Jesus Christ, November 27, 1980, 1980 *PoW*, vol. 23, p. 341.
- Jesus Christ, June 27, 1993, 1993
 PoW, vol. 36, p. 515.
 Mother Mary, August 14, 1989.
- 1989 *PoW*, vol. 32, p. 592. 23. Lanello, March 1, 1992, 1992 *PoW*,
- vol. 35, p. 125.
- 24. Lanello, March 15, 1981, 1981 *PoW*, vol. 24, p. 605.

- 25. Jesus Christ, November 23, 1989, 1989 *PoW*, vol. 32, pp. 774-75.
- 26. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1992, 1992 *PoW*, vol. 35, pp. 784.
- 27. Jesus Christ, April 15, 1990, 1990 *PoW*, vol. 33, p. 236.
- 28. Lord Maitreya, July 3, 1970, 1984 *PoW*, vol. 27, p. 162.
- 29. Lord Maitreya, March 28, 1984, 1984 *PoW*, vol. 27, pp. 90-91.
- 30. Prophet, *Morya*, p. 21.
- 31. Ibid., p. 231.
- 32. Jesus Christ, November 27, 1986, 1986 *PoW*, vol. 29, p. 638.
- 33. Archangel Michael, July 2, 1981, 1981 *PoW*, vol. 24, p. 340.
- 34. Lord Maitreya, December 31, 1989, 1990 *PoW*, vol. 33, p.11.
- Great Divine Director, January 3, 1993, 1993 *PoW*, vol. 36, p. 98.
- 36. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1987, 1987 *PoW*, vol. 30, pp. 640-41.
- 37. Jesus Christ, 1969 *PoW*, vol. 12, p. 230.
- 38. Kuthumi, November 18, 1984, 1984 *PoW*, vol. 27, p. 521.
- The Fourteenth Rosary: The Mystery of Surrender, p. 5.
- 40. Lord Maitreya, July 1, 1961, 1984 PoW, vol. 27, p. 61.
- 41. Mother Mary, October 26, 1990, 1990 PoW, vol. 33, p. 531.
- Jesus Christ, December 25, 1992,
 1992 PoW, vol. 35, pp. 783-84.
- 3. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1990, 1990 PoW, vol. 33, p. 625.
- 44. Great Divine Director, January 3, 1993, 1993 PoW, vol. 36, p. 97.

18

19

^{*} *PoW* is an abbreviation for *Pearls of Wisdom*.

Affirmations Taken from "The Reincarnation of the Spirit of America" by Saint Germain

I AM the life everlasting here and now!

I AM immortal in Christ my Lord.

I AM the fullness of love none can touch.

I AM the spiraling, ascending flame that God loves so much!

I AM my Father's child, son and daughter where I AM.

I AM in the wholeness and fullness of wisdom's fount.

I AM bathed by supernal streams of light. I drink the elixir of divine Oneness. I come into the center and eye of God's power.

I AM in the whirling vortex of archangels. I AM in the center of the One and I AM on earth victorious in the flame of Godfreedom. Lo, I AM that God-freedom unto America!

And I, with Saint Germain, with Johnny Appleseed, go forth now to sow the seeds of freedom--to sow the flames. And where'er I walk, Zadkiel is with me, violet-flame angels are with me. And each footprint leaves a footprint of violet flame for another to step into and *know* the joy of the Holy Spirit and *know* the joy of my becoming one in the Sacred Heart of Jesus.

I have recourse to the Immaculate Heart of Mary.

I AM in the ovoid of Helios and Vesta!

I AM here and now in the bliss of God!

There is nowhere to go, for I AM fully One in Him.

Lo, thou art in me, I AM in thee, O God. And we are One, as Above, so below. And therefore, do with me what thou wilt, O living Word. For I AM thy servant-spokesman. Thy Divine Mother I AM. I AM thy child and brother/sister. Lo! I AM thy friend, O God.

O Abraham of old, let thy mantle be upon me, for I would walk the earth a friend of God. O Morya, come unto me now. For it is long enough to be saturated and supersaturated with human selfishness and nonsense. I AM through with all of this! It is resurrection's morn!

I glow in Christhood. And as my members glow, I see the Sun shining, passing through me now. And all is transparent light and rainbow rays, and the causal body does shine. And I see the Sun of my causal body *rising* in this hour, *rising* in this hour, *rising* to the heart of God!

And lo, I AM in the center of the One. And even as the shaft of light does accelerate up, so it does accelerate into the heart of the earth. And there in the center of the One I hold the balance for evolutionary life till all be fulfilled, till karma be expiated, till earth come into alignment, till the golden age appear--else till the new planet and the new world appear.

And I AM in the heart of that new world even as I AM One. I AM in the center of the new world. I AM in the surface of the new world. And the new world is born in the heart of Helios and Vesta. And earth is in the violet flame. And lo, I AM THAT I AM.

And therefore, by the sign of the cross did Francis bless. By the sign of the cross do the birds caress. By the sign of the cross I AM prepared to meet my love--and be all One.

In Christ I AM reborn--in Christ this golden morn. America, I love thee! America, I love thee! America, be infused with resurrection's light!

I go now to the Royal Teton Retreat, there to behold the sunrise over America and a new day. It is a promise that I shall make good. For I know that only the keeper of the flame can keep the flame of resurrection burning when all the world is dying and annihilating self, and self destructing.

I AM the keeper of the flame. I AM the resurrection and the life of the flame in all hearts! I keep the vigil with the Goddess of Liberty and I AM one in the heart of Hope. Hope shall never die in me till all cycles be self-transcended and fulfilled.

Lo, I AM in the wings of Hope.

I AM in the heart of Faith.

I AM the instrument of Charity.

Red, white and blue--ruby ray, purity, sapphire hue.

I AM thy first love, O God. Thou art my own.¹

Part 2 Fiats

Fiats of the Christ

- O Jesus, come into my temple!
 O Jesus, my Lord, receive me as thine own.
- 2. My Lord Jesus Christ, have mercy upon my soul!
- 3. In the Sacred Heart of Jesus, I trust!
- 4. In the Immaculate Heart of Mary, I trust!
- 5. My soul doth magnify the Lord! And my spirit hath rejoiced in God my Saviour!
- 6. Light! Light! Light! O Son of God, appear!
- 7. O Cosmic Christ, thou light of the world! Thou art life, and thy life is the light of my being.
- 8. O Holy Christ Self, occupy my temple until my Lord Jesus should find my temple a fitting habitation. So I call to my Christ Self now! I call to my Christ Self now until my Lord Jesus should come!
- 9. I call to my Lord and Saviour Jesus Christ to enter the vacuum of my being.
- 10. Let that mind be in me that was also in Christ Jesus.
- 11. In the name of the Father

I will be Christlike!

In the name of the Son

I will be Christlike!

In the name of the Holy Spirit

I will be Christlike!

In the name of the Mother of the World

I will be Christlike!

- 12. Fill me, O Christ, thou light of the world!
- 13. I AM merging my entire consciousness, being and world with the Spirit of my Lord Christ and my Lord Krishna, according to the divine plan of my soul's journey this night.

14. I will walk with God! (3x)

I will take his hand! (3x)

I will believe in the Son Jesus Christ! (3x)

I will believe in the One Sent! (3x)

Even the messenger of his anointing! (3x)

Even my beloved Christ Self! (3x)

LORD God Almighty, I submit to thy law of love! (3x)

And to the law of the One! (3x)

- 15. In the name Jesus Christ, I command my four lower bodies: Peace, be still! Be still and know that I AM God!
- 16. I AM led by the Spirit of God! I AM a Son of God!
- 17. I AM thy holy love! I AM thy secret love star!
- 18. I AM the servant of Christ Doing the will of God from the heart.
- 19. I can of mine own self do nothing.

 It is the Father in me which doeth the work!
- 20. My Father worketh hitherto and I work!
- 21. I must work the works of him that sent me!
- 22. I will work while I have the light [the Guru] with me, for the night cometh [the absence of the Guru] when no man can work!
- 23. In the name of my mighty I AM Presence, in the name of the Son of God and beloved Jesus Christ.
 - I AM working the works of him that sent me—right now today!
 - I AM working the works of him that sent me in God's own way!
 - I AM working the works of him that sent me by love's consuming sacred fire!
 - I AM working the works of him that sent me by Christ's own God-desire!
- 24. My burden is light!

- 25. Father, into thine arms I commend my spirit.
- 26. Father, into thy hands I commend my spirit.
- 27. I AM the resurrection and the life!
- 28. I AM the resurrection and the life of God's inner fire in my heart and in the hearts of all sons and daughters of God through the resurrection victory of Jesus Christ over death and hell!
- 29. Jesus Christ, the same yesterday and today and forever!
- 30. I AM thy power-wisdom-love sustaining every heart and heartbeat. I AM thy love-commanding Presence commanding: Love, rule! Love, rule!
- 31. In the name Jesus Christ, I affirm with my Saviour in the heart of the Lord, which is, and which was, and which is to come the Almighty: I AM Alpha and Omega, the Beginning and the Ending!
- 32. Behold, I AM everywhere in the consciousness of God!

Fiats for the Will of God

- 33. The will of God is good!
- 34. Not my will, not my will, not my will but thine be done!
- 35. Lo! I AM come to do thy will, O God!
- 36. I and my Father-Mother God's will are one!
- 37. I stand perfect and complete iall the will of God.

Fiats to God

38. In the name I AM THAT I AM, O God, Help me!

- 39. I AM THAT I AM, mighty I AM Presence, come into my temple now!
- 40. Come into my heart, O Sun of God!
- 41. O God! I claim the promise: I AM drawing nigh to thee. Draw thou nigh to me!
- 42. Be still and know that I AM God and that the I AM THAT I AM within me is that God! And I will not be moved from my course of service to my God.
- 43. The permanent atom within my heart is a replica of the crystal atom of beloved Alpha's own being! In this replica is a ribbon of light connecting me with the I AM Presence of beloved Alpha. Therefore: We are One!
- 44. I AM Alpha and Omega, the Beginning and the Ending.
- 45. I and my Father are one. I and my Mother are one.
- 46. Holiness unto the LORD!
- 47. Holiness unto the LORD. Holiness unto the LORD. Holiness unto the LORD where I AM THAT I AM!
- 48. Where I AM, there I know that my God liveth.
- 49. I AM THAT I AM! I AM the offspring of God, I have come forth from the Sun—and to the Sun I return!
- 50. O God, my heart chalice runneth over!
- 51. In the name of Almighty God, I will my light to shine!

- 1. Jesus Christ, April 28, 1991, 1991 *PoW*, vol. 34, p. 314.
- 2. Mother Mary, August 22, 1992, 1992 *PoW*, vol. 35, p. 440.
- 3. Elizabeth Clare Prophet & Staff of Summit University, *Walking with the Master*, p. 162.
- 4. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 62.
- 5. Ibid,, p. 36.
- 6. Saint Germain, April 18, 1987, 1987 *PoW*, vol. 30, p. 176.
- 7. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 25.8. Jesus Christ, December 25, 1994,
- 8. Jesus Christ, December 25, 199 1994 *PoW*, vol. 37, p. 585.
- 9. Elizabeth Clare Prophet, January 1, 1997, 2002 *PoW*, vol. 45, p. 248
- 10. Prophet and Staff of SU, Walking with the Master, p. 389.
- 11. Ashram Rituals Booklet, p. 36.
- 12. Ibid.
- 13. Ibid., p. 49.
- 14. Jesus Christ, May 12, 1983, 1983 PoW, vol. 26, p. 530.
- 15. Ashram Rituals booklet, pp. 39-40.
- 16. Ibid., p. 28.
- 17. Ibid,, p. 14.
- 18. Ibid., p. 29.
- 19. Ibid., p. 53.
- 20. Ibid.
- 21. Ibid.
- 22. Ibid.
- 23. Prophet and Staff of SU, *Walking* with the Master, p. 164.
- 24. Saint Germain, February 22, 1987, 1987 *PoW*, vol. 30, p. 132.
- 25. Saint Thérèse of Lisieux, February
 28, 1988, 1988 PoW, vol. 31, p. 306.
 26. Fourteenth Rosary: The Mystery of
- 26. Fourteenth Rosary: The Mystery of Surrender, p. 6.
- 27. Saint Germain, April 18, 1987, 1987 *PoW*, vol 30, p. 176.
- 28. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 61.

- 29. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 27.
- 30. Ibid., p. 20.
- 31. Ibid.
- 32. Mighty Victory, March 31, 1983, 1983 *PoW*, vol. 26, p. 237.
- 33. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 31.
- 34. Ibid, p. 35.
- 35. Ibid., p. 31.
- 36. El Morya, July 7, 1991, 1991 *PoW*, vol. 34, p. 526.
- 37. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 29.
- 38. Jesus Christ, October 7, 1984, 1984 *PoW*, vol. 27, p. 447.
- 39. Mother Mary, April 18, 1987, 1987 *PoW*, vol. 30, p. 166.
- 40. Gautama Buddha, May 14, 1984, 1984 *PoW*, vol. 27, p. 285.
- 41. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 49.
- 42. Saint Joseph, June 27, 1992, 1992 *PoW*, vol. 35, p. 372.
- 43. Alpha, September 2, 1961, 1982 *PoW*, vol. 25, p. 480.
- 44. Maha Chohan, June 7, 1992, 1992 *PoW*, vol. 35, p. 280.
- 45. El Morya, June 29, 1993, 1993 *PoW*, vol. 36, p. 568
- 46. The Beloved Messenger, February 15, 1986, 1986 *PoW*, vol. 29, p. 279.
- 47. El Morya, June 29, 1983, 1983 *PoW*, vol. 36, p. 564.
- 48. El Morya, April 2, 1983, 1983 *PoW*, vol. 26, p. 316.
- 49. Ashram Rituals booklet, p. 57.
- 50. Lord Maitreya, July 1, 1981, 1981 *PoW*, vol. 34, p. 331.
- 51. Asrham Rituals booklet, p. 56.

My Christmas Fiat by Jesus Christ

This is not me! This is not of myself. This is not of my true nature even in this octave. This is not of my Christ Self. This is not of my God.

This is an invader in my temple. I will seek the opening. I will shut it and seal it. I will seal the place where evil dwells! And I will see to it that I do not accept these clever projections, O so subtle, that invade the emotional body and that tell me that they are myself.

I disown *everything* that is less than the Christ in me this day. This is my Christmas fiat! This is what I say as a disciple of my Lord Jesus Christ! I disown anything and everything in me that is not of the light of my God and my True Self. For I know who I AM. I know who I was in the Beginning. I know who I shall be in the Ending. And nothing that has coated me over in the inbetween stage can remain any longer.

Let it melt in the sunlight of Helios and Vesta!

Let it melt in the noonday presence of Alpha and Omega!

For I AM THAT I AM a Son of God in the earth this day. I AM THAT I AM one in the heart of the two witnesses, in the heart of Padma Sambhava, in the heart of my Jesus Christ, my Lord Maitreya, my Lord Gautama Buddha and my Lord Sanat Kumara. I am one in this chain and this lineage of the hierarchy of God, and therefore I shall clean escape this entire unreality.

Vacate, ye fallen ones! I AM here to occupy. And I occupy with the fullness of my causal body unto the coming of my Lord Sanat Kumara and his saints. And I shall even practice the multiplication of my causal body and my own Electronic Presence. And therefore I shall not only occupy one seat but also two seats and three and five and ten. I shall place myself all over the earth wherever there is a vacancy, that not another fallen one may enter.

Let them be gone! For the saints are marching on. The saints are marching on! And I AM a part of that body of the saints in the earth and I do take my stand. And this is not my last stand; for I shall stand again and again and again as long as

necessary until there shall be the redemption of all of the love and the giving and the sacrifice of Saint Germain and Portia, until this earth is returned to them by the strength of my Lord with me.

So I vow this this day, for I AM done with the world! I have experienced it. I have drunk its cup again and again and again!

And I have also given to the fallen ones too much of the light of the Divine Mother. I will go after it. I will seize it from them. They shall not take from me that four-leafed clover of my balanced pyramid in manifestation.

I AM the threefold flame in the etheric quadrant. I AM the threefold flame in the mental quadrant. I AM the threefold flame in the desire body. I AM the threefold flame in the earth quadrant. I AM THAT I AM.

I AM the fullness of the thrust and the might and the courage and the strength of the emerald ray of Saint Patrick. I claim him as my own. For with him I raise the staff and the sword and I clean these serpents out of the angel land, yes, the angel land America, Britain and every place where the angels have gone in the earth.

So I AM here, O God, in the profound gratitude that I have this body of flesh. I will not curse it! I will not loathe it!

I will love my body, for the Divine Mother in me loves that body. I will love that body, for the Father in me loves it. I will give it eternal life. I will give it the stream of my life descending from the heart of God. I will watch as it does become immortal before my very eyes.

I will experience the transfiguration in this my day. I will present a living chalice. And the LORD God shall take me into the mountain of Maitreya and I shall *know in this life* the meaning of the transfiguration. I shall prepare to it!

I shall call upon my Lord Sanat Kumara and *he* will answer me. He will not forsake me in trouble. He will not leave me alone. He will not fail to comfort me, to deliver me, to heal me, to renew my soul and to restore it.

For I AM THAT I AM my God in manifestation.

I shall show the cosmos the purpose of creation itself. I shall show the cosmos why we have descended to this level in the very cup of the V itself and its lowest descent.

We have come, O God, to demonstrate to what level the soul may descend, even in congruency with the astral plane and death and hell itself, and yet rise--and yet, even before rising, to be in the astral plane the fullness of God in manifestation.

Therefore, I will with Jesus bring my God into manifestation in the very depths of death and hell until there is no more room in death and hell for these fallen ones to occupy those thirty-three levels! They shall have no place to go; for I shall bring the brightness of the glory of the Lord there, protected by the seven mighty archangels.

And therefore they will simply have to find another place to go! For death and hell shall be swallowed up in victory and cast into the lake of sacred fire! And if they wish to be spared, they will have to quit that death and hell themselves and follow the example of my Lord and my Saviour.

Therefore, I will preach to them! I will challenge them! I will charge them to bend the knee before the Cosmic Christ, before the coming of the Lord Sanat Kumara. For the clock is ticking for all of you in the astral plane, and therefore he does come with ten thousand of his saints.

Hear them! They are shouting the battle cry. They are singing hosannas. They are crying out hallelujahs!

For they are in all phases of Armageddon, from the first day unto the last. They come and they are numberless numbers. And the saints of God that surround the glory of the great white throne do gather and there is a communion and a oneness.

Part 3 Mantras and Kuan Yin Vows

Mantras to Maitreya

1. **Maim** (Mah-Eem)

Maim is the bija, or "seed" syllable, of Maitreya.

2. **Om Maitreya Maim** (Om My-Tray-Uh Mah-Eem)

3. Namo Maitreya (Nuh-Mo My-Tray-Uh)

Hail! (Homage to the sacred name of) Maitreya.

4. Maitri Maha Maitri Svaha

(My-Tree My-Tree Muh-Hah My-Tree Swah-Hah) Loving-kindness and great loving-kindness, please grant me that, Maitreya! or Maitreya, Maitreya, I will worship him!

5. Om Ah Maitreyanathaya

(Om Ah My-Tray-Uh Not-Eye-Uh)

6. **Hum Phat Svaha** (Hoom Puh-Hut Swah-Hah)

This mantra invokes Maitreya as a protector.

Mantra to Padma Sambhaya

Om Ah Hum Vajra Guru Padma Siddhi Hum

Om Ah Hum! Vajra Guru, who arose from a lotus (Padma Sambhava), please grant me the ordinary and supreme accomplishments, Hum!

Mantra to Avalokitesvara/Kuan Yin the Bodhisattva of Infinite Compassion

Om Mani Padme Hum

OM, Thou jewel in the lotus, HUM! or Hail to the jewel in the lotus!

Mantras to the Five Dhyani Buddhas and Vajrasattva

1. OM VAIROCHANA OM!

Flood us with the All-Pervading Wisdom of the Dharmakaya, my mighty I AM Presence. By thy sacred fire consume in me the poison of ignorance!

2. OM AKSHOBHYA HUM!

Flood us with Mirrorlike Wisdom. By thy sacred fire consume in me the poison of all anger and hate and hate creation!

3. OM RATNASAMBHAVA TRAM!

Flood us with the Wisdom of Equality. By thy sacred fire consume in me the poison of spiritual, intellectual and human pride!

4. OM AMITABHA HRIH!

Flood us with Discriminating Wisdom. By thy sacred fire consume in me the poisons of the passions- all cravings, covetousness, greed and lust!

5. OM AMOGHASIDDHI AH!

Flood us with All-Accomplishing Wisdom, the Wisdom of Perfected Action. By thy sacred fire consume in me the poisons of envy and jealousy.

6. OM VAJRASATTVA HUM!

Flood us with the Wisdom of the Diamond Will of God. By thy sacred fire consume in me the poisons of non-Will and non-Being: fear, doubt and non-belief in God, the Great Guru.

7. COME VAIROCHANA! COME AKSHOBHYA! COME RATNASAMBHAVA! COME AMITABHA! COME AMOGHASIDDHI! COME VAJRASATTVA!

8. OM HUM TRAM HRIH AH HUM

Ten Vows of Kuan Yin "Hail, Greatly Merciful Kuan Shih Yin!"

1. I desire/I vow to quickly know the entire dharma!

Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Su Chih I Ch'ieh Fa (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw Soo Je(r) Eee Chee-Eh Fah)

2. I desire/I vow to soon attain the eye of perfect wisdom!

Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Tsao Te Chih Hui Yen (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw (D)Zow Doo Je(r) Hway Yen)

3. I desire/I vow to quickly save all sentient beings!

Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Su Tu I Ch'ieh Chung (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw Soo Doo Ee Chee-Eh Johng)

4. I desire/I vow to soon attain the good and expedient method which leads to full enlightenment!

Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Tsao Te Shan Fang Pien (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw (D)Zow Doo Shahn Fahng Bee-En)

5. I desire/I vow to quickly board the prajna boat!

Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Su Ch'eng Po Ju Ch'uan (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw Soo Chung Bwaw Roo Tchwan)

6. I desire/I vow to soon transcend the 'bitter sea'!

Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Tsao Te Yueh K'u Hai (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw (D)zow Doo Yew-Eh Koo High) I desire/I vow to quickly attain good discipline, the stability of meditation and the Way of the Buddha!
 Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin
 Yüan Wo Su Te Chieh Ting Tao
 (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een
 Yew-En Waw Soo Doo Jyeh Ding Dow)

8. I desire/I vow to soon scale the mountain of nirvana!
Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin
Yüan Wo Tsao Teng Nieh P'an Shan
(Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een
Yew-En Waw (D)zow Dung Nyeh Pahn Shahn)

I desire/I vow to quickly realize the unconditioned!
 Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin
 Yüan Wo Su Hui Wu Wei She
 (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een
 Yew-En Waw Soo Hway Woo Way Shoo)

10. I desire/I vow to soon unite with the dharmakaya! Na-Mo Ta Pei Kuan Shih Yin Yüan Wo Tsao T'ung Fa Hsing Shen (Nah-Mo Dah Bay Gwahn She(r) Een Yew-En Waw (D)zow Tohng Fah Shing Shun)

Suggested Decrees and Affirmations from Prayers, Meditations, Dynamic Decrees for the Coming Revolution in Higher Consciousness*

1.	Violet Fire and Tube of Light Decree0.01
2.	Pour Out the Radiant Golden Oil of Peace0.02A
3.	O Mighty Threefold Flame of Life0.06
4.	I AM a Son of God
5.	I AM the Light of the Heart0.07A
6.	Great Central Sun Magnet Invocation0.08
7.	Attunement
8.	The Keeper's Daily Prayer1.00
9.	Call to the Fire Breath
10.	I AM Thy Chalice1.02
11.	I AM Lord's Prayer
12.	Heart, Head and Hand Decrees1.30
13.	The Balm of Gilead
14.	I AM Light7.10A
15.	Salutation to the Sun
16.	Keep my Flame Blazing30.01
17.	Introit to the Holy Christ Self30.02
18.	Adoration to God
19.	I Raise My Cup to Thee30.05
20.	The Covenant of the Magi30.08
21.	Prayer to the World Mother30.09
22.	Fátima Prayers56.03
23.	Mother Mary's Christmas Eve Prayer58.00

24.	Beloved Flame of Resurrection	60.01
25.	Transfiguring Affirmations of Jesus the Christ	60.01
26.	It Is Finished!	60.02
27.	The Masters' Vessel	60.03
28.	Thirty-Three Fiats of the Light	60.07
29.	The Prayer of Saint Francis of Assisi	60.08
30.	My Vow to Be the Ministering Servant	60.09
31.	Saint Patrick's Lorica for Protection	60.12
32.	Affirmations of Jesus Christ	.62.00-62.04

See also *Church Universal and Triumphan Book of Hymns and Songs* for more devotions to Jesus Christ, Mother Mary, El Morya, Saint Germain and Lanello. The songbook is available through Summit University Press or The Summit Lighthouse Bookstore on this web site.

^{*} Available through Summit University Press.